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SHIRLEY 
Ellicott City 
Private circa 1865 

Shirley is a noteworthy example of the Romanesque Revival Style as 
evidenced in Howard County brick architecture. It is composed of 
two sections which form a T plan. Laid in English garden wall brick 
bond, its three story high north section is a five bay wide, two 
bay deep, gabled roof (running north-south) brick structure with an 
outstanding intersecting central gable roofed dormer window. This 
dormer hold a double Romanesque window surmounted by a roman arched 
brick lintel over each section. In addition, the east and west 
walls of this section hold two roman arched double-hung windows 
with similar lintels. An original window pane is dated November 
1865. A large kitchen and pantry with extra sleeping rooms above 
is attached and probably constructed prior to the main body of the 
house. 

Built and owned in 1865 by Carter George who came from a Virginia 
family whose home was named "Shirley", he first settled in Howard 
County at Dalton east of Route 29. Named Shirley after his 
ancestral home, it has also been known as the Little Brick Farm 
prior to 1865 and today as the Herman Feage Brick House. It is 
one of Howard County's finest landmarks of the Romanesque Revival 
Style. 
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Located on the west side of Centennial Lane approximately a half 
mi le south of Frederick Road, Mr. Herman Feage 1 s house has been known 
as the Old Brick Farm and Shirley. It was built in two sections,con­
structed of brick and laid in English garden wall brick bond on a 
stone foundation. 

The West Section 

The west section. is a two bay deep, gabled roof (running east -
west) structure with wide brick central chimney inset into its west 
.W$ill i!ln~ central rectangular entrance door set into its south wall 
whic11 is three bays wide. 
The East Section 

The east wing section is a Romanesque revival style brick house 
(laid in English garden wal 1 brick bond). It is a five bay wide, two 
bay deep, two and a half story, gabled roof (running north-south) 
structure with wide brick chimneys set into its north and south walls. 

East Elevation of East Section 
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A central intersecting gabled roof dormer is set into the central 
bay off the east wall which holds a double-roman arched windo.;i, each 
section of which has a three lite casement window surmounted by a 
roman arched lintel. A one story high flat roofed open porch lies along -I 
the entire east eleyat'ion supported by eight square wooden posts con­
nected by a wooden ballustrade. 0 

Eight stove piles connected by wooden lattice work support the 
porch floor. Four stone steps with flag storie treaders tead to the 
open porch and the central rectangular, double-paneled wooden door 
which is flanked by four vertical side lights and surmounted by a four 
lite transom decorated with a stretcher brick flat arched lintel. Two 
first floor rectangular, double-hung windONs, holding six-over-six 
lights, decorated with. stretcher brick, flat arched lintels and black 
wooden shutters rest on either side of the central .entrance. Similar 
second floor windONs, verically alligned aniproportionally scaled rest 
above. with the follONing exception: (1) the central bay holds a 
double windON, each component of which is a rectangular, double hung 
windON with four-over-foor lites separated by a flat wooden pilaster, 
flanked by wooden shutters and surmounted by a flat arched, stretcher 
brick lintel. A wide cornice adorns the roof line held by four 
scrolled brackets at each .corner, and tw~· at each side of the base of 
the intersecting gabled roof dormer whose brick faces lies flush with 
the east wa 11 • 

The North & South Elevations of the. East Section 

The nortn and south elevations are identical, holding two first 

z 
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and second floor rectangular windows similar to those already described and two 
roman arched three lite casement attic windows decorated with roman arched, header 
brick linels, and flat woodm sills. Two horizontal, rectangular, three lite basement 
windows are set into the stone foundation. These basement windows are decorated 
with stretcher brick, flat-arched lintels. 

Perimeter of East and West Wings 

The stone foundation has a water table running along the entire perimeter 
of both the east and west sections of the house. 

West Elevation of East Sections 

From almost the entire width of the west wall springs the west wing. A basement 
window is located on the south side of the west wall similar to those described. 
An outside west entrance door once led onto the open porch which has now been 
enclosed toprovide space for a desk and powde~ room. 

The East Section 

The north wall of the east section holds three first and second floor windows 
vertically alligned and similar to those already described but smaller in scale. 

West Elevation of East Section 

The west wall of this section holds two cellar windows similar to those already 
described and two rectangular, double-hung attic windows holding two-over-two 
lites decorated with flat wooden sills. 

South Elevation of East Sections 

A shed roofed1 one story highJopen porch extends along the south elevation and is en­
closed on the east side. This east wall holds a rectangular double-hung window 
with six-over-six lites and a two lite vertical rectangular casement window east 
of it. Four wide brick steps with iron railing lead to the open porch which 
is enclosed on the west side and which is supported on the south side by two 
square posts connected by a wooden railing. A double cellar door lies encased in 
a stone base on the west bay base of the south porch. 

Interior of East Section 

The interior of this house has fine original woodwo.rk, open bible and cross paneled 
doors, random width floors, original mantle pieces &central hall staircase 
with turned knewel post and carved spindles. A window pane marked E. De C Nov. 12, 
1865 on one of the lites in the north window of the east wall offers a construction 
date. 

The second floor trim over doors and windows is entirely different from the 
plain rectangular molding of the first floor. It is characterized by~-low pitched 
pediments over doors and w~ndows representative of the neo-Grek style. 

Interior of West Section 

The interior of the west section is smaller in scale arrlhas more simple 
woodwork and trim, leading to a belief that this is an earlier dwelling. This is 
offset by the rafter in the attic which has "J.B. Coomes, Mar. 31, 1876" written 
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in great bold letters. It may well be that the main house was constructed 
an earlier outdoor kitchen which was replaced by this service wing in 1876. 
house sits up on a gently sloping hill surrounded by some 90 acres of Howard 
Countyy's best soil. 

Log House & Outbuildings 

with 
The 

A log house which has been demolished stood south of the house. Outbuildings 
for machinery and tools ly south west. 

-- -------------------
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The significance of "Shirley" is both historical and 
architectura 1. 

The property belonging to Shirley originally came off 
Burleigh and belonged to the Hammonds. This is indicated on 
the Martinette Map of 1860. (See attachment 3). It was locatec 
on Hammond's Inheritance, patented in 1796 by Rezin Hammond. 
The 1860 Martinette Map (See attachment 3) gives no indication 
that Shirley existed at that time but indicated it was part of 
Burleigh's 1000 acres, owned by Matthais Hammond. On the 
Hopkins Atlas Howard of 1878 (See attachment 4) it is indicate< 
as belonging to Walter S. Kennedy. A pane of glass is dated 
1865 on the east elevation of the east wing. This helps con­
siderably and falls in line with the information given through 
the two maps. 

A Mr. Hunt is believed to have built the house originally. 
One of the very early owners of the house, Carter George, 

named it "Shirley" for a plantation home of the Carter family 
of Virginia, located between Williamsburg and Richmond. It 
supposedly was named for one of the women in the family, It 
is believed that Carter George named this home in Howard 
County "Shirley" after this Virginia home of his family. Gen­
eral Robert E. Lee is said to have been related in some way 
through marriage to Carter George and visited "Shirley" when­
ever he visited Baltimore and his old friend Colonel Marshall 
at Markham, now calle.d Marshallee. 

Other residents of "Shirley" were the Stuarts, the Trip­
plets and a man named Hall. A Mr. Harman, a school teacher 
taught children here, according to Mr. Feage, the present 
owner. 

In 1878 the house belonged to a Mr. Walter S. Kennedy, whc 
may have added the service wing extending from the west wall oj 
the original structure. A signature is written on a rafter in 
the attic of this section of the house ---- Coorn·etS, March 31, 1876. 

Architecturally, the building is outstanding as a fine 
example of the Romanesque Revival in American domestic brick 

PS- 709 
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architecture of the mid-nineteenth century. It is rivalled by 
few structures in Howard; Montrose and Huntington Farm alone 
come to mind. 

The building presents a unified and well proportioned com­
position. Its north and south walls are identical and symmetrical 
in treatment with two outstanding Roman attic windows. The other 
Romanesque feature, the twin Romanesque window inset into the 
central gabled roof, intersecting, east facade dormer window, is 
also noteworthy. 

The land surrounding Shirley has already been subdivided with 
water and sewage hook up assured. For these reasons, "Shirley" 
should be included in the National Register of Historic Places, the 
State Planning Program for Critical Areas and any future local land­
mark legislation. 

Note: The service wing of the house appears much earlier than 
the date March 31, 1876, inscribed by Mr. Coomes. Also it 
is noted on the Mart\ntf Map of 1860 (see attachment 3) as 
an existing building. Mr. Feage believes it was known as 
the Old Brick House Farm at that time and that a water 
system installed later may have resulted in the inscription 
of 1876. 
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1. Interview with Mr. Herman Feaga at 11Shirley" May 10, 1977. 
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